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Fl~:ca'z Years 1995-1996 

Th,~',Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act 

oj'i996(" HIPAA" aka "Kassebaum-Kennedy"), 
p.i.,,;~104..191, signed August 21, 1996 

'(J'J. ~ (j Im:ml 
18 U'.S.q 1347, Health care fnlUd 4'v' S' e'C Q 00 
statM~;Whoever knowingly and • 4~ :<f("' f""'Ito. ~ ::I. C 
wiII~~,I!y, executes, 01' attempts to ,,~h&~ ~~. ';I'~~. ro "'-'"I CI"J 0 

execu, t,e, a scheme or artifice- (I) to dh Ifl 'eo u; r.... ;tifII ~ r,.,
"'8 ~ (; ",' '.r.: 'WJu"....~. 0"';'def'r~u(r any health care benefit ~4 -1; ~h (O"~ _ . ­

progr~m; or (2), to obtain, by means ~ ~ ~~ , ::?',1( Q. ., (1 
of' fa,I~~ ,or f~audulent pre!enses, ~. ~ ~ '/ ~ ~ ~ 0 

reprr~~.ntatlOns, or promises, any of ~ ~ ~ ~~ ~ ~ ,._ 
the I~~mey or property owned by, or ,f~.,. ~ ~q:3 ~~ =~ _"
und~r, ~~e custody or contl'Ol of, any ~ t"~ ~."I \ boI W 
~lealtl~~car~ ben~fit pt'ogt'am, • • ~ (; ~ S ......::m 
In c(),?;,~ectlOn With the delivery of or ~q. '----1 
payment for health care benefits The United States may rI',f = ~ 
iteni~;ior services (shall be guilt/of recover treble damages _. 
an offense;) and a civil penalty of ~ 

',::y:' $5,000 to $10,000 per 	 ~ 
:.! ' violation. 	 ~ 

Program Fraud Civil 

Remedies Act, 31 
U.S.C.§§ 3801-3812 

18 U.S.c. §669, Theft 
or Embezzlement in 
connection with 
health care 

Cj'yil False Claims Act, 31 	U.S.C.§§ 3729..3733 
~ i':~ ". ' 

42 U.S.C § l320a-7b, 
18 U.S.C. § 1035, False Criminal Penalties for Acts 
Statements relating Involving Medicare or State 
to Health Care Matters Health Care Prograills 

:'~kU,S.c. ~ 1320a-7a, Civil Money Penalties for 
,t:!,~p~~ified fraud and abuse violations are extended from 	 18 U.S.C. § 3486, Authorized Investigative 

demand procedure for DOJ Investigations\M~dicare and Medicare programs to all other federal relating to Federal criminal health care 
'%e~lth care programs fraud offenses. 

::{:~~: ,:.: 
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To the Senate and the House ufRepresentatives 
oftheUnited State~ of America in Congress Assembled' 

Fraud in the U.S. health care system is a serious problem that impacts every person in this· 
country. The U. S. General Accounting Office estimated, that more than $100 billion _. about 10 
perce-nt of the $1 trillion spent.on hea.lth cere each year in this country -·is lost to fraud and abuse 
each year. On July 16. 1997 the Ir.~pector General of the Department ofHcalth and Human 
Services issued a repOlt that concluded that the :Medicare program alone ha.s overpaid hospitals, 
doctors; and other health care providers in 1996 by an e,siimated $23 billion. These improper. 
payments could range from inadvertent mjst?j~cs 10 outright fraud and abuse. We can not 
quantifY what portion oftheiriiprop~r payments are attributable to fraud. . 

J)oHa.rsalone, however, 'do riot adequ'ale1y measure the impact 'of health care fraud on our nation. 
fraud and abuse in the health care industry pose a direct ~- and potentially growing .-- threat to the 
. lives find health of n'Lillions of Americans. For example, investigators and prosecutors have 
uncovered numerous schemes where health car'e ,cheats charge for life-saVing medical te~ts that 

. are notpetformed. Decisions which physicians make each and every day -- whether and where to 
. hospitalize a patient', wh~tlab tests to order, what surgical procedures to perform, what drugs to 
prescribe, and how long to keep ~ patientin a facility ~'" affect the health and ".vell-being of all 
Americans. We carinot allow the creation of financial inducements to corrupt the judgement of 
professional medical providers, providers whom the American people have been taught to trust· 
for years. 

the Department ofHealth and Human Services and the Department of Justice, along with other 
federal, state and local agencie~, are coriunitted (0 the aggressive enforcement and prevehtionof 

. health care fraud in this country. The creation of the HeaIth Care Fraud and Abuse Control 
Program has greatly enhanced the abilities of the law ehfbrcement community to prevent, detect, 
investigate, and pro!\ecute health Care fraud matters. 

The success of the prograrn cOrltes from the hard work dpne on a day-to-day basis by dedicated 
investigators, auditors, prosc.cutors, and support personnel across this nation. This inaugural 
Annua.l Report highlights their outstanding contributions: . 

Respectfully submitted, 

Donna. Shalata Janel Reno 
Secretary Attorney General 

http:spent.on
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EXECUTIVE SUl\11VIARY 


Fraud and abuse in the U.S. health care system costs Americans an estimated $100 billion each 
year. Perhaps even more disturbing, many' [alms of health care fraud and abuse pose a threat to 
the health and safe.ty of c.ountless Americans, including many ofthe most wlnerable members of 
our society. 

To respond to this serious problem, Congress passed the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996 (It}UPAA"). l:IIPAA provided powerful ncw criminal and civil 
enforcement tools and $104 million in resollrces dedicated to the fight against health care fraud. 
(Separately, the Federal Bureau ofInvestigation received ·$47 million which is discussed in 
AppettdLx One.) In addition, HIPAA. required th~ Attori1~y General and the Inspector General of 
the Department ofHealth and Human SCr\-ices to estabtish a coordinated national Health Care 
Fraud and Abuse Control Program ("Program"). The Program, established by the Attorney 
General and the f-illS Ins'pector General in January 1997, provides a coordinated national 
framework for federal, state, and 10eallaw cnfO[CC!11cnt agencies. the private sector, and the 
public· to fight health c.are fraud, 

The first-year results of the Program delilonstrate its effectiveness in meeting the goalscstabUshed 
by Congress in HlP f\.A.. . 

Civil and.Criminal Enforcement Actions 

Civil and criminal heaJthcare fraud erif6rcenicJlt actions increased significantly in 1997. Federal 
. proseciitors filed 282 criminal indictments in health care (raud cases in 1997 -- a IS percent 
increase OVt.!f the previoljs year. Similarly. the number of defendants convicted for health care 
frnud~related crimes rose from 307 in 1996 to 363 in.1997 -- an 18 percent increm.;t.!. The number 
of ch·il health care matters also increased in 19'97. v.-ith federal prosecutors opening 4,010 civil 
matters .- an ihcrease of 61 percent over 1996. 

~Ionetary Reslllts 

.In 1997, the Federal Government won or negotiated over $1.2 billion injudgmchts and . 
se.ttlernents in health care fraud cases.. Aggressive effort~ by federal law enforcement authorities 
also resulted in the collection of S1.087 billion in criminal fines, civil judgments and settlements, 
and administrative sanctions in health care fraud and abuse cases. There is no direct correla.tion 
between new judgments, and settlements and actual eoUections, a~ the collections include the 
cUlmination of some investigations and prosecutions be~n before the efi~ctivc date of the 
Program. Thus, resolution of these enforcement Clctivities is not attributable solely to funding 
under the new Program. At the same time, many enforC€mlent actions underta~:cn. in 1997 will not 
result in collections until future years. 

4 
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A significant portion of the S 1.087 collected we're the result of narion\1.ide investigations into 
fraudulent billing practices of hospilals and independent laboratories. 'More than 93 percent of the, 
funds collected and disbursed in 1997 _. $999 million •• \1.ras returned to the Health Care 
Financing Administration (HeFA). where it v.~!1 be used to provide medical cue to the elderly and 
other needy Americans. 

IDxclusion from Federally. Sponsored rrogr;lllls 

HIPAA provid<:d powerful new tools to prohibit companies or individuals convicted of certain 
hcnlth care offenses from participating in Medicare, Medicaid or other federally sponsored health 
care programs. In 1991, lIDS excluded more than 2,700 individuals and entities from federally 
sponsored health care programs .• a 93 percl.'nl increase over 1996. 

Prc\'cnting Hellth Care Fraud 

Preventing health care rrauu and abuse is a central component of the Program. The Program's 
prevention efforts inc1ud'e the promulgation (.)f Cormal adVisory opinions to industry on proposed 
business practices, model compliance plans, speciaJ fraud alerts, and heneficiary and provider 
educ:ltion and outreach.. 
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TopIc Current Law 

Partial 
lIosp-. 

Partial hosrit..'1iizatidn ser.;ces are furnished by a hospital 
to its outpaTients or by a. rommurii~' mental he.:1lm 
~hter. There is currently no reStriction on where partial 
hospit:dization ser\'ices may be furnished. 

Medkare 
Drug 
Paymenls 

Before J.<l.n. I, 1998, Medicare paid for drugs based on 
the Average ·whole~'l.li::: priet' (A"\iP). Th; A v,'P is a 
·sticker" rrice set by drug mantifllCOJrers. Beginning 
Janu1ry 1, 1998 wirh !he implementation of Se(tion 
JSS6 of the Balan¢~ Budg~ Act, Medican::'g payment 
for drugs and biologicals is 9S%6f the AWP. 

Epotcln Reimbursetncnt for EPO'is $10 per 1,000 units 
adrhini>tered. 

Medicare A., 
Seconuaty 
Payer 

-
TheJe is no $!.'llutcty rtquirerrient for group health plans 
to rl:port to Medica.t;e the idcnticic:s of those bendiciarics 
for whom the-)' are ie'sponsiblc for primary eover9ge . , 

User Fees' Providers are not charged for any claims submit!cd. 
Claims s is funded by HCFA administrati....e funds. 

The higher costs of'processing paper c!.-ums are paid fer 
through HCFA's f~ndil1g to i15 COnI!3ctor~. , , . 

Pro\',d\li' enrollmcn~ costs are paid for by HCFA's 
pr?iram m1ncgement 

HCFA administrative funds cO\'er the prO<"~ssifig of 
appli~stions and re:riev-rals from heslth rlan,. 

Congress ippropriaies funds to pay for survey and 
CGrtific3tion. HCFA is prohibi~d bySO;;tion 1864 of !he 
SSA froin charging providers and suppliers for costs 
incurred in SUf\1;y lind certific.ation. 

Congress appropriatrs funds To ray for sUf'\I'OY and 
ccrtific31ion. HCFf\ is prohibitl:d by S.x;:tion 1864 of the 
SSA from charging providers and suppliers for costs 
in'curred in survey certification. 

These COStS are cO';ercd sol<:ly by Medicare lntegrity 
P10sram fees. ! 

Pioj)osal 

Preeiudc providefs from 
tl.irriishing partial hospitalization 
ser.ices in a lxmcficiary's home 
o,r iq an inpatient o'r rcsidchtial 
setting. 

Eliminate the mark·up for drugs 
by basing Mcdicll.I'e':; payinent on 
The provider's acqiJisition cosT of 
the dmg. 

":' . " 

Reduce the nit; HCFA 
reimburses for EPO to 59 p(7 
1,000 units adlTlini$lered. 

Require all insiJr.mce companies 
to mstth their commerciAl 
cnrqllment records \l~th 
Medicare. 

Chart:c $1 for duplicate or 
unproc<:ssable claims 

Ch~'rge for processing pap;r 
claims 

Charge provider enrollmdlt 
rogi,stration fee, 

Charge health plans for 
processing initial applications and 
renewed contracts 

Ch~g¢ fee to cover 100% of 
initial certification costs 

Chsrge fc!c to co.,.er 33~';' of 
rc'ccrti tication costs I 

fcc to cover all audit and 
activity 

. Savm'gs 
FY99 &XSyn 

(in nHllions 

·15 

·70 

-4$ 

·10 

+35.5 

·j·55 

+20 

+ 36,7 

+ 10 

+ 52.3 

+395 

·120 

·120 

·320 

.690 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

NA 

TOTAL P.02 




President Clinton Announces Home Health Moratorium Is Being Lifted Because New 

Tough Anti-Fraud Regulations Are In Place 


January 13, 1998 


Medicare is more than just another program. For millions of Americans it is a 
lifeline. Maintaining the integrity of that lifeline has long been a top priority of this 
Administration. 

Last September, I announced that the Department of Health and Human Services was 
declaring the first ever moratorium to stop new home health providers from entering the 
Medicare program. We took this unprecedented action to give the Administration the 
opportunity to implement new regulations to create protections to screen out providers who are 
likely to cheat Medicare. 

Today I am announcing that the Department is removing the moratorium because the new 
tougher regulations are in place to root out fraud and abuse in the home health industry. These 
regulations will help keep bad apple providers out of the home health industry .. These actions-­
combined with other anti-fraud initiatives and other savings initiatives -- have helped slow the 
growth of home health spending. In fact, the Medicare actuary now reports that the rate of 
increased Medicare spending on home health is [down to] just 5.4 percent -- down from previous 
rates that exceeded 25 percent. 

These efforts to root fraud and abuse out of the home health industry build on my 
Administration's longstanding efforts to combat fraud and abuse. Since 1993, we have assigned 
more federal prosecutors and FBI agents to fight health care fraud than ever before. As a result, 
convictions have gone up a full 240 percent and we have saved some $20 billion in health care 
claims. The Kassebaum-Kennedy legislation I signed into law created -- for the first time ever -­
a stable funding source to fight fraud and abuse. This year's historic Balanced Budget Act, 
which ensured the life of the Medicare Trust Fund until at least 2010, also gave us an array of 
new weapons before in our fight to keep scam artists and fly-by-night health care out of 
Medicare and Medicaid. 

I would like to thank the Department of Health and Human Services and the Department 
of Justice for their efforts to help combat fraud and abuse in the home health industry. 

We will continue to work to assure that we do everything possible to combat fraud and 
abuse in our Medicare and Medicaid programs. 



PRESIDENT \VILLIAl\l.J. CLINTON 
RADIO ADDRESS ON IHEDIC.ARE FRA.tID 

DECEl\lBER .13, 1997 

Good Morning. I'd like to give you a progress report on our fight agahlst waste, fraud 
and abuse in ~ur Medicare system. Medicare is more than just a program; it reflects our values. 
Tt is one way we honor our parents ,and grandparents .- and protect our families. This SlUluuer, 
we took historic action to strengthen Medicare by improving benefits. expanding choices for' 
recipients, and cX1ending the life of the Trust Fund to at least the year 2010. I ·have also named' 
four distinguished experts to a bipartisan conmussion that v,ill Endways to ensure Medicare will 
serve baby boomers and our children as well as it has served our parents. 

But to protect Medicare and the fundamental values it represents. we must also 
vigorously fight waste. fraud and abuse in the system. These activities diminish our ability to 
provide high·quality, affordable care for some ofour most vulnerable citizens. Medicare fraud 
costs billions of dollars every year, amounting to an unfair fraud tax on all Americans. Our' 
taxpayers deserve to expect that every cent of their hard-earned money is spent on quaUty 
medical care for deserVing patients. 

I am proud ofwhat we've already accomplished to crack down 011 W1lste, fraud a.nd abuse 
in Medicare. Since 1993, we have assigned more federal prosecutors and FBI agents to fight 
health care fraud tl1an e':er before. As a result, convictions have gone up 240 percent. We have 
saved $20 billion in heaJth care claims. Two years ago, the Department of Health and Human 
Services launched Operation Restore Trust, which has a.lready identified $23 in fines aDd 
settlements for every dollar invested. Our historic balanced budget gives us an array of new 
weapons to keep scam artists and fly-by-night health cate providers out ofMedicare. And earlier 
this fall. f annowlced n~w actions to root out fraud and abuse in the mushrooming home health 
industry -- from a moratorium on ne'v home health agencies in the system to a doubling ofaudits 
to a new ccrti.fication renewal process. . 

But we must do more. Sometirrieslhc waste and abuses aren't even illegal. but en'lbedded 
in the system. Last week., the Department of Health and HWllan Services confirmed tllatolIT 
Medicare prugram has been systematically overpaying doctors and clinics for pr~scription dmgs 
-- overpayments that cost taxpayers hundreds of millions of dollars. Such waste is simply 
unacceptable. These overpayments OCCllI because Medicare reimburses doctors according to the 
published average who.lesale price .- "the sticker pric~", -- for drugs. FeW doctors, however, 
actually pay full sticker price. In fact, some pay just one tenth of the published price. That is 
why T am sending to Congress the same legislation 1 sent l:lst year -- legislation that will elisure 
doctors are reimbursed no more and no less than the price they themselves pay for the medicines 
they give Medicare patients.' While a more modest version of this bill passed last summer, the 
savings to ta.,'-:payers is not nearly enough. J\1y bill will snve$700 million over the .next five 
years. 1urge Congress to pass it. 

There is no room for waste, fraud and abuse in Medicare. Only by putting a pennanent 
stop to il can we honor our parents, protect our ta'Cpayers and build a world-class health care 
system for the 21 st century. 



PRESIDENT CLINTON ANNOUNCES EFFORTS TO BUILD ON HIS STRONG 

RECORD OF FIGHTING FRAUD AND WASTE IN THE MEDICARE PROGRAM 


December 13, 1997 


Today, President Clinton announced that his FY1999 Budget will include a proposal to stop the 
Medicare program from overpaying for the drugs it covers. This proposal, which will save 
Medicare and the taxpayers who support it $700 million over five years, builds on President 
Clinton's strong record of cutting waste an~ fighting fraud in the Medicare program. 

Proposed Legislation to Stop Medicare from Overpaying for Drugs. A recent report by the 
HHS Inspector General found that what Medicare currently pays for drugs "bears little or no 
resemblance to actual wholesale prices that are available to the physicians and supplier 
community that bill for these drugs." Medicare pays for drugs based on the "average wholesale 
price (A WP)" -- a "sticker" price set by manufacturers and published in several commercial 
catalogs, rather than the average price actually charged by wholesalers to their customers. the 
IG report confirmed that Medicare pays hundreds ofmillions more for 22 of the most common 
and costly drugs than would be paid if market prices were used. For more than one-third of these 
drugs, Medicare paid more than double the actual wholesale prices, and in some cases pays as 
high as ten times the amount. 

In his balanced budget proposal last year, the President offered legislation to stop these excessive 
payments by ensuring that Medicare does not overpay for the drugs it covers. Congress passed a 
modest version of this bill in the balanced budget agreement, by reducing payments to 95 percent 
of the AWP. However, this reduction does not go far enough. The President is 'proposing that 
the Medicare payments be reduced to the actual amount that the drugs cost. This legislation will 
save $700 million over five years and builds on the President's strong record of fighting fraud 
and cutting waste in Medicare. Since he took office, the President has: 

Added Three New Weapons to the Anti-fraud Arsenal to Combat Fraud and Abuse in the 
Home Health Industry. The President recently announced a set of initiatives to eliminate fraud 
and abuse in the home health care industry: (l) an immediate moratorium on all new home health 
providers coming into the Medicare program; (2) a new renewal process for home health . 
agencies currently in the program; and (3) a doubling of audits that will help weed out bad apple· 
providers. Home health care is the most rapidly expanding part ofMedicare, with nearly 100 
new home health providers entering Medicare each month. These actions are consistent ~ith 
recommendations by the Inspector ,General at the Department of Heath and Human Services 
following a recent report on fraud in the home heath care industry .. 

Took Strong Action to Fight Fraud and Abuse Right When He Took Office. The 
. President's first budget closed loopholes in Medicare and Medicaid to crack down on fraud and 
abuse. In 1993, the Attorney General put fighting fraud and abuse at the top of the Justice 
Department's agenda. Through increased resources, focused investigative strategies and better 
coordination among law enforcement, the Justice Department increased the number of health 
care fraud convictions by 240 percent between FY1993 and FY1996 and we have saved 
taxpayers more than $20 billion. 



Launched Operation Restore 'Trust -- a Comprehensive Initiative to Fight Fraud and 
Abuse in Medicare and Medicaid.' Two years ago the Department of Health and Human 
Services launched Operation Restore Trust, a comprehensive anti-fraud initiative in five key 
states. Since its inception, Operation Restore Trust has identified $23 for everyone dollar' 
invested in fines, recoveries, settlements, audit disallowances, and civil monetary penalties owed 
to the Federal Government.' . 

Obtained Additional Resources to' Fight Fraud and Abuse When the President Signed Into 
Law Kassebaum-Kennedy Legislation. In 1996, the President signed the Health Insurance 
Portability and Protection Act (Kassebaum,;.Kennedy) into hiw which, for the first time, created a 
stable source of funding for fraud controL This legislation is enabling HHS to expand Operation 
Restore Trust to twelve states. 

Passed New Initiatives to Combat Fraud and Waste Proposed by the President in the 
Balanced Budget Act of 199,7. The Balanced Budget Act the President signed into law in 
August also included important new protections to fight fraud and ,abuse in Medicare ~d 
Medicaid. These new initiatives included: 
• 	 requiring providers to give proper identification before enrolling in Medicare; 
• 	 implementing new penalties for services offered by providers who have been excluded by 

Medicare or Medicaid; 
• 	 establishing guidelines for the frequency and duration of home health services; 
• 	 clarifying the definition of part-time or intermittent nursing care which will clarify the 

scope of the Medicare benefit and will make it easier to identify inappropriate services; 
• 	 establishing a prospective payment system (PPS) for home health services to be 

implemented in FY1999, enabling ReFA to stem, the excessive flow of home health care 
dollars; 

• 	 clearly defining skilled services so that home health agencies can no longer pad their bills 
with unnecessary services when a patient simply needs a simple service such as their 

, blood drawn; 
• 	 and eliminating periodic interim payments that were made in advance to agencies and not 

justified until the end of the year. 



PRESIDENT CLINTON ADDS THREE NEW WEAPONS TO BUILD ON STRONG RECORD 

OF FIGHTING FRAUD AND ABUSE 


Today President Clinton added three new weapons to the anti-fraud arsenal to combat fraud and abuse in 
the home health industry. The President announced: ,(1) an immediate moratorium on all new home 
health providers coming into the Medicare .program to allow the Health Care Financing Administration to 
implement new regulations to prevent fly-by-night providers from entering Medicare; (2) a new renewal 
process for home health agencies currently in the program to ensure that all Medicare providers have to 
abide by these tough new regulations; and (3) a doubling of audits that will help weed out bad apple' 
providers. These actions are consistent with recommendations to reduce fraud in home health by the 
Inspector General at the Department of Heath and Human Services following a recent report on fraud in 
the home heath care industry. These new initiatives build on the President's unprecendented record of 
fighting fraud and abuse in Medicare and Medicaid. 

Took Strong Action to Fight Fraud and Abuse Right When He Took Office. The President's first 
budget closed loopholes in Medicare and Medicaid to crack down on fraud and abuse. In 1993, the 
Attorney General put fighting fraud and.abuse atlhe top of the Justice Department's agenda. Through 
increased resources, focused investigative strategies and better coordination among law enforcement, the 
Justice Department increased the number of health care fraud convictions by 240 percent between 
FY1993 and FY1996 and we have saved. taxpayers more than $20 billion. 

Launched Operation Restore Trust -- a Comprehensive Initiative to Fight Fraud and Abuse in 
Medicare and Medicaid. Two years ago the Department of Health and Human Services launched 
Operation Restore Trust, a comprehensive anti-fraud initiative in five key states. Since its inception, 
Operation Restore Trust has identified $23 for everyone dollar invested; identified more than $187.5 
million in fines, recoveries, settlements, audit disallowances, and civil monetary penalties owed to the 
Federal Government. 

Obtained Additional Resources to Fight Fraud and Abuse When the President Signed Into Law 
Kassebaum-Kennedy Legislation. In 1996, the President signed the Health Insurance Portability and 
Protection Act (Kassebaum-Kennedy) into law which, for the first time, created a stable source of funding 
for fraud control. This legislation is enabling HHS to expand Operation Restore Trust to twelve states. 

Passed New Initiatives to Combat Fraud and Waste Proposed by the President in the Balanced 
Budget Act of 1997. The Balanced Budget Act the President signed into law in August also included 
important new protections to fight fraud and abuse in Medicare and Medicaid. These new initiatives 
included: 
• 	 requiring providers to give proper identification before enrolling in Medicare; 
• 	 implementing new penalties for services offered by providers who have been excluded by 

Medicare or Medicaid; 
• 	 establishing guidelines for the frequency and duration of home health services; 
• 	 clarifying the definition of part-time or intennittent nursing care which will clarify the scope of the 

Medicare benefit and will make it easier to identify inappropriate services; 
• 	 establishing a prospective payment system (PPS) for home health services to be implemented in 

FY 1999, enabling HCFA to stem the excessive flow of home health care dollars; 
• 	 clearly defining skilled services so that home health' agencies can no longer pad their bills with 

unnecessary services when a p(itient simply needs a simple service stich as their blood drawn; 
• 	 and eliminating periodic interim payments that were made in advance to agencies and not justified 

until the end of the year. 
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MEDlCAllil P.IU1TIAL 
HOSPlTAI...IZATION IN'T.EGRIT£ A. 

HON. FORTNEY PEIE SfARK 
OF CALIFORNIA 

IN THE BOUs:e OP' ~ATlV1;:s 

Wednesd4y. October 8, 19!1l 

Mr. STARK. Mr. Speaker, on behalt 01 R 
resentalive KAReN THURMAN and mysetf, I 

A temporary ba:: 0:'1 a.drnitt1ng new compa,­
ntea to thEl prognun woald. allow .Medl.:a.re 
time to renIn control or the ~!tuaj.;"r:; and 
cre<l-~ li8'!:r.ter pollcles. lI.u':.horities say. 

One policy now allows partial hOSJ)ltalit;a.. 
tion ~ to provide: care oaellide their 
centerS.. One revte:W found billings ror pa. 
tie12t.s from locations 33 <.IISt.3.:lt as 150 miles. 

The companies. t:ft-plcally for-l:)I'Ofit outnr.s. 
are virtll.ally un:rtgU.\ated. 

They aZ"!! suppose4 to provide ~:'loe:)ts ,.,ith 
several !lours a. day 0': ;!':.t-::"a;)::; ar.d. sta."blI1:t­
i:\8" trea.tmem;. Clut spot federal a.Ud!:5 fOlllld 
tbat "none of the !!Tout> liIeSS10ns a..-e bei~ 
Ie<! by lioeIl3ed St.'Lff as required by $t;,I.te 1 ...­
to proV1de psychotlle:rapy" u.:td that "no ::I.e­

t.i ve treatmellt 1$ being ;>rovided. ". 
The st:a.c;.e does not pay toc: l)a...-tia.l hos.­

pitalization alId ~ los.. little mOnty, But 
coner-oUing qu.a.lity is u. big conce::":!. along 
...rich helpin&' Medicare 511!eguard public 
money. said spokeswoman Collee12 OlLv1t1 of 
the Agency tor Heal'Ch Care Ac1r:!i12istl':l.tlon. 

"Our fll.l2dame!2w problem is that tllese 
Pt'OfmI,m$ ;u-e not licensed. a.a<! lkenSing is & 

Pt'Ol(y for monit.ol'1ng Quality." David said. 
"The pr~ baa ole~17 STOW;!. 
exponentially over ~ very short ~r!Od of 
time:' 

The number of part1al hospitalizatiol! cen­
r.ers bitUng Medica.re in Florida grew from 
none in 1991. the yea,r tile federal government 
~nded the ea.tq;ory, to gr 111 1994. 

$1nce then. the number ha.:s tripl!!d. or the 
259 Florida companies. today, Oad'il County 
alOne baa 161. Browa:rd County h33 22 l\:D.d 
Palm Beach. 20. 

There i'I" al50 a. nationwide problem W1th 
tncreases in spendlns; per patient. Operation 
B.es1;ore "r'nisr:s Dewey Price noted. "and 120­
where Is the situation more alarming tba.n in 
t:be state of Florida:' 

In' 1993. three of the state'S part1.al hO$-. 
pltaliza.'Cion pt'OgI1I.mS ranked. ILrrIOng the 30 
nationWide wlm Ule big-hest. per-pat1ent 
eIa.1ms. A year la.ter. Florida ba4 10 of the 30 
highast r>U1ers. And in 1995. Florl~ bad 22 
out or:». 

http:pt'OgI1I.mS
http:part1.al
http:Medica.re
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PREN1IER 


September 29, 1997 

President William Jefferson Clinton 
The White House 
Washington, D. C. 20500 

Dear Mr. President: 

I am writing to you to applaud your recent efforts to attack fraud and abuse in the Medicare 
program. 

Premier serves over I800.hospitals and integrated health care delivery systems across the 
country. Our hospitals and health systems are leaders in providing high quality patient care 
using the most the innovative approaches to health care delivery, and we do so with a strong 
emphasis 011 both integrity and value. We believe that health care providers have a responsibility· 
to their patients as well as to those paying for the care, particularly in the Medicare program 
given the vulnerability of its beneficiaries and the program's fragile financial situation. This is 
why we strongly support the moratorium on certification of new home health agencies which you 
announced on September 15. 

As you know, home health care has seen especially rapid growth in recent years, with an 
increasingly serious problem of fraud. Many patients are dependent on home health services, 
and most of the home health care provided today is necessary and is delivered by providers with 
the integrity to not take advantage of beneficiaries or the Medicare program. 

But, with the escalating level of fraud, we believe your six-month moratorium on new providers 
is the right action at the right time. We hope that this will send a strong signal to all providers, 
not just those providing home health care, that you and the Depattment of Health and Human 
Services are serious about combating fraud. The six-month period is long enough to allow the 
development of appropriate standards for certification as a provider, but is not so long as to raise 
significant concerns about beneficiaries' access to needed services, especially given the plentiful 
supply of home health agencies already celtified to serve Medicare beneficiaries. 

Premier believes that Medicare should establish strong standards for providers desiring to 
jxovide health care services to Medicare beneficiaries. For too long, the program has set 
relatively weak requirements for providers ,even when an adequate supply exists to assure 
access. We do not believe that Medicare has an obligation to certify. all who would seek to 

.,\ ,,'.: I "I ", ' ; '"1,111.,1;:,' 
Thf("I..' \\'nl [_:"ill.k \ :OqIIlLlI': t :,:llt.:1 ·!",ql Cluli,;I!t" I·.~d" I lriv( i};-\.~I-I 

NiHil! Flunc h 1 Pm) 1,j,S~HI! 
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provide services. Instead, standards should be high enough to guarantee Medicare beneficiaries 
the highest quality care available, consistent with cost and access. 

Again, we applaud you for taking the tough action of imposing a moratorium. We hope that this 
will lead to a new emphasis on high standards ofquality, cost and integrity for those who would 
seek to provide health care services to Medicare beneficiaries. 

Sincerely, 

'1/)iMK~ 
ames L. Scott 

President, Premier Institute n
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I ~RESIDENT CLINTON LAUNCHES NEW ATTACK ON HOME CARE FRAUD 0vJs-- ~ --\ ,J~ ~]-, 
", ", , . . ", '. "', ' 'rt-'-'C~.,~ 

President Chnton today announced a three-part .initiative to sharpen the administration's attack on fraud and abuse 
in the home health industry. The announcement includes the first-ever moratorium on the entry ofany 'new home 
health agencies into Medicare; new regulations that will tighten the certification process; and, a doubling of the 
number of home health agency audits performed as part of the !Vledicare Iritegrity Program (MIP). This is the 

, latest of the administration's initiatives aimed at fighting fraud in the home health program which served nearly 
three and one-half million Medicare beneficiaries in 1995.' '\ ~-

A THREE-PRONGED ATTACK 

Calling Time Out. The moratorium on new home health providers is a dramatic and unprecedented action 
demanded by the presence of waste, fraud and abuse in thisrel3Iively new industry. Itwas first recommended 
by the HHS Inspector General in her report on problems in the home health care business. This temporary hold 
will allow the Health Care Financing Administration (HCFA) to implement important new safeguards included 
in the budget; and will give HCFA time to develop new regulations. ' 

Homing In on Fraud., The new regulations; along with administrative changes HCFA wiH impose, will make 
it easier for Medicare to weed out those who would bilk the system for their oWn profit at the expense of the 
most vulnerable population Medicare serves. Other, tough new standards HCF A will propose include: 

.. Subsidiaries Can't Be Hidden. Information about related businesses owned by home health agencies now 
'must be revealed. This will help prevent home health agencies from hiding illegal activities by running 
transactions through subsidiaries or shadow companies that don't really exist. The Senate Aging 
Committee rec€:mt1y heard testimony from one former owner of a Georgia home health agency, who is now 
in prison, who used subsidiaries to defraud Medicare of $16,5 million.' , 

• 	 Frequent Recertification. Periodic re-enrollment of home health agencies every three year~. This proposed 
rule will help HCFA target abusive pro.v'iders employinginappropriate practices. Independent audits of 

. home health agencies~ records will also be required by HCFA at the time ofre-enrollment, and they must 
done at the agencies own expense, the way banks are now required to do. 

• 	 Agencies Must Have Experience. A minimum number ofpatiemsmust already be on a home health 

agency's rolls prior to seeking Medicare certification. This requirement helps establish an agency's 

experience in the industry before serving Medicare enrollees. 


• 	 Financial Stability Assured. Surety bonds of $50,000 must be posted by home health agencies. before they 
will be certified as Medicare providers. This new rule was part of the bipartisan budget agreement and 
helps establish the financial stability of new providers. Initial capitalization sufficient to operate 'for at teast 
three, months will also be required. 

Increasing Audits to Weed Out Fraud. HCFA will increase its spending on home health audits by $10 
milJion--doubling the number performed from 900 to 1,800. The 8Q.ency will also increase claims reviewed by 
25 percent from roughly200,000'to as many as 250,000. HHS' Insp~ctor General has also received $70 million 
in new fraud fighting funds from the Health Insurance.Portability'and Accountability Act that wiH increase 
investigations, prosecutions and audits ofhealth care fraud and abuse-bolstering the efforts of Operation 
Restore Trust. 

, , 

. BUILDING ON PREVIOUS CLINTONADMINISTRATION ACTIONS 
,. 

Since taking office, President Clinton has made combating fraud .and.abuse in health care a major priority. The 
administration has incr<:ased the number of health care fraud convictions by 240 percent between FY 1992 and 
FY 1996, saving the taxpayers more than $20 bilUon. The' administration also launched Operation Restore 
Trust, an anti-fraud initiative targeting home health, that has identified $23 of overpayments for every $1 
invested. In 1996, the President signed the Health Insurance Portability and Ac:countability Act into law which 
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e,xpanded ORT and created the first stable source offunding for fraud control. The President has also just 
signed an historic balanced budget law that adds 10 years to the solvenc)! of the Medicare Trust fund and 
gives HHS new tools for fighting waste, fqiUd and abuse. Those new tools inchide\he power to bar felons 

. \ 

from Medicare, the right to requite providers to report their Social Security and Employer Identification 
numbers so that HCFA can detennine if they have committed health care fraud in the past. 
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DRAFT Qs&As 

On Home Health Agency 

Moratorium Announcement 


Q WHY IS THE DEPARTMENT IMPOSING THIS MORATORIUM ON NEW HOME HEALTH 
AGENCIES? 

, 	 ' 

A There is an urgent need to make fundamental chaflges inlhe way Medicare does business with home 
health providers. We are imposing this ,,!oratorium so Ihal the agency that runs Medicare and Medicaid can 
turn its attention from processing the 1,000 home health applications il gets every year to writing new 
regulations tojightfraud and abuse. This mordtoriuln is unprecedel'lted, it was recommended by the 
Inspector General and it is being imposed while the Depanment implements th~ new program safeglfards 
included in the budget. During this time, the Health Care Financing Adm[nistration will wJrite important 
new requirements to strengthen the provider enrollment process /0 better screen out problem providers 

. before they are allowed to serve Medicare benefiCiaries These newregulations will also make iteasier to 

. expel problem prOViders in the future. We simplydecided [0 call a halt 10 processing these reqliests while we 
toughen standards. 

Q HOW LONG WILL THE MORATORIUM LAST? 

A About six months, while the'regulations are being prepared. 

Q WHERE DOES THE AUTHORITY TO IMPOSE IT COME FROM? 

A Under the law, the Secretary h~s the responsibilio; to ensure the fiscai soundness ofits care 
providers. The Department currently receives about 1,000 applications per yea~ for home health agency 
certifications. 

Q WILL THIS MORATORIUM HURT BEl\T£FICIARIES? 

A The Department will work with exYsting horrie health providers to assure that no beneficiary goes 
without needed care during this temporary moratorium, There are so many certified home health providers 
across the nation, if. is doubtful that any beneficiaries wouldface a problem. 

Q WHAT WILL THE NEW REGULATIONS DO? 

A The new regulations will make many important changes in requirements for home health agencies 
that want to participate inMedicare. Some oflhose changes will be: 

ea new requirement that home health applicants supply business information about related organizations 
it may own. Often, home health agencies wishing to commilfraud can hide illegalactivities by running 
transactions through subsidiaries or·shadow companies Ihal don " really exist. This new requirement' 

, will make those kinds ofscams harder to commil. 	 ' . 

• 	 a new requirement/or periodic re*enrollment and/or cerliJication a/home health agencies everythree 

years. This will help HCFAtarget prQviders with inappropriate practices or program abuses. 
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\ 	 , 
• 	 0 a home health agency will. also be required to submit an independent audit ofits records 10 HCFA allhe 

lime ofre-enrollmenl. And. those agencies 'will have fO pay for those audits,jusllike banks are required 
10 do. 

e 	 a requirement Ih~t hO.me health agencies serve a minimum nUlnberof patients prior to seeking Medicare 
certification. Some exceptions to this rule will be allowed . . 

II implementation ofa new rule approved in the budget to require home health agencies to have $50,000· . 
surety bonds. This will establish the financial stability ofnew providers. . 

• 	 A related new requirement will sel initial capitalizal ion requireinents for home health agencies sufficient 
~o operate the business for the first three to six months ofoperations. . 

Q WHAT ELSE IS HCFA DOING TO GUARD AGAINST FRAUD? 

A We are doubling the number ofhome health audits and increasing claims reviewed by 25 percent. We 
will also be seeking more funds to increase our fraud surveillance by even larger numbers. 

~ , 	 .. 

Q WHAT ELSE HAS HCFA DONE TO ACT AGAINST THE 'PROBLEM PROVIDERS' IN THE. 
HOME HEALTH INDUSTRY IDENTIFIED BY THE INSPECTOR GENERAL? 

. 	 \ 

Du;ing the past two years, HCFA has taken action to deal with many ofthe providers identified as . 
"problem providers" by the IG. Ofthe 698.home health agencies identified in a recent report. for example, 
HCF A had already taken action against the vast majority L~rthem, including; . 

• terminated 67; 

'. referred an additional 75 to law enforcemem, and. 


• 	 collected overpayments from 437 agencies. 

In addition, one was convicted as an individual and four others as members ofa convicted national 
company. HCFA continues to scrutinize carefullyal! ofihe remaining identified providers to determine 
appropriate action. 

Q WHAT ABOUT THE CONDITIONS OF PARTICIPATION REGULATIONS? 

A The comment period on the propo;ed COP regulations has closed and HCFAis reviewing the 
comments it received. We expect to publish the final rule during the moratorium. The COP rules will be 
complementary to the new enrollment regulations in 'improving service and service providers for home 
health recipients. The COP rules will require providers to b.e much more responsible for the quality and 
continuity ofcare patients receive. The COP rules willrequireproviders to perfdrm standardized 
assessments ofthe results (outcomes) a/the care I/uiy have provided fhrough the OAIS orOutcomes 
Assessment Information Set. OAIS will for the first time al/o\v HCFA and ultimately patients to compare, on 
a level playingfield, one home health agency to another. The COP will also require that patients be given 
more information on their treatment plan, in advance ofcare, and that agencies pelform criminal. 
background checks on job applicants. 
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·Q 	 IS THE HOME HEALTH PROGRAM "OUT OF CONTROL" THE WAY THE HHS 

DEPUTY INSPECTOR GENERAL HAS SUGGESTED? 


A At the time this administration iookoffice, fraud in the home health industry was "out ofcontrol. " 
. But, we have made great progress since that time. Certainly, it was at an unacceptably high level. w,hich is 

why we have taken this actiontoday and why President Clinton has madefightingfraud a top priority since 
the beginning ofhi's first term. . 

The President's first budget closed loopholes ill Medicare and Medicaid that had allowed waste, 
fraud, and abuse to occur. And in 1993, the Attorney General put fighting health care fraud at the top o/the 
Justice Department's agenda. Through increased resources. focused investigative stralegies and better 
coordination among law enforcement, the:,'lIstice Deparlilielli increased the number 0/health care/raud 
convictions by 240 percent between FY 1992 and FY 1996 and we've saved taxpayers more than $20 
billion. 

To build on these efforts. two years ago, we lalll/ched Operation Restore Trust, a comprehensive anti­
fraud initiative which target home health care, in 5 key stales. Since its inception, Operation Restore Trust 
· has returned $23 for every $1 invested,. In 1996, the President signed the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Actinto law, for the first time, creating astable sOi.lrce offundingforfraud control. We've 
· now expanded Operation Restore Trust and upgraded a toll:fi;ee hotline, 1-BOO-HflS-TlPS 

We wiil continue our work to reduce fraud and abuse in home health care with the proposals 
in the budget- such as giving us new authority to barfelolls form i'vfedicare and Medicaid; eliminaiing 
unnecessary payments to home health providers that the make home health market a ·magnet for fraud; and 
moving to a payment system that will rei~ in home healthproviders . ability to bill Medicare without limit. 

Q 	 HOME HEALTH SEEMS TO BE JUST THE TIP OF THE ICEBERG. HOW DO YOU ACCOUNT 
FOR THE $23 A YEAR BILLION IN INCORRECT PAYMENTS UNCOVERED RECENTLY BY 
THE HHS INSPECTOR GENERAL? WHAT IS YOUR ADMfNISTRATION DOING TO 
CORRECT THIS PROBLEM? 

A In addition to fightingfraud, we have a comprehensive plan [0 fight waste as well. One quick way to 
get at wasted dollars is to institute new competitive models into our system. We will be exploring 
competition among health plans and competition among suppliers from whom we buy our goods and 
services. No longer will we waste dollars bypaying ridiculous prices for things like wheel chair pads. The 

. budget gave us clear authority to introduce competition into lvledicare and we will quickly do so. Also, the 
budget will help us stop waste in home health by requiring agenCies 10 bill at the rate for the area in which 
the service occurred (the patient's home) and not the rate the applies [0 the urban area where many agencies 
are headquartered. Also, the budget gives the Secretary new authoriry 10 reduce payments for goods and 
services that are inherently unreasonable up to 15percent a year, or 45 percent over three years. That will 
significantly reduce waste in. the program. 

. 	 \., 

Also, the independent audit that thi! SecretalY annollnced today is just one ofseveral additionar . 
. ".'. 	 . \, 

actions we will take over the next several months. 
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, .. HOMEHEALTH CARE: , 
IMPROVING QUALITY,TIGHTENING STANDARDS 

Overview: Home health care, available to any home·bound beneficiary who 
requires skilled care, is the fastest growing expense in {he Medicare program. This rapid 
expansion began in 1989, when a lawsuit forced changes in the Mecficare regulations 
expanding eligibility and e/~minating tlui cap on the number ofvisits. In 1996, more 
than 10 percent ofMedicare beneficiaries re,ceil!ed hOl;le services, at a total cost of$18 
billion. Ab.out 9,000 home lJ.ealth agencies currently serve iifedicare beneficiaries. The 
rate ofgrowth in the number 0/home health providers has slowed in the past year as the 
screening process has improved. 

The Clinton Administration is commitled to ensuring that Medicare beneficiaries, 
get home care that is appropriate ando/the highest quality. The administration is also 
committed to assuring that the homehealthprogram isfree ofthe fraud that has become 
prevalent recently. As the result o/the administration's increased scrutiny ofthis 
program, several reports by the HHS InspecTOr General have found that fraud is an 
increasing problem in this industry. In' keeping with President Clinton 's '~zero 
tolerance" policy he has just announced the first-ever moratorium on admission ofany 
new home health agencies into the Medicare program. 

During the'moratorium, the Health Care Financing Administration v.>ill implement 
the many new program safeguards won in the bipartisan balanced budget and develop 
-new regulations aimed at greater fraud control. HCFA will also immediately implement 
several administrative rule changes. 

These changes (outlined below) are in addi!ion to other propose~rulesalready in 
the regulatory pipeline. On March 5, 1997, .NHS announced two new proposed rules 
resultingfrom a comprehenSive three·year evaluation ofMedicare 's home health 
benefit. One rule would revise ,Medicare 's Conditions ofParlicipation that home health 
agencies must meet in order to participate in the Medicare program, including requiring 

. 'all home health agencies to conduct bar;kground investigations for all employees. A 
separate rule would require home health agencies 10 use standard measurements for the 
quality and outcomes ofpatient care. HHS is now considering comments and soon will 
publish final rules. ­

Under the new balanced budget agreement struck by President Clinton and the 
Congress, new tools to fight fraud and abiJse have been given to the Health Care 
Financing Administration (HCFA). These measures will allow the agency to more 
effectively control the rapidly growing cost ofhome health benefits by moving to a 
prospective payment system, and separating Arfedicare funding for home health care into 
two streams: payment for care that ]ollows hO~]Jital stays and payment for care relatt;d ' 
to chronic health problerns.··Separating these two 'very different types ofhome care will 
make it easier to determine when each is appropriate, reducing unnecessary care and 
paymentfor services that Medicare. does not cover. Congress also approved the 
President's proposal to bar felons from participaring in Medicare; -eliminate periodic 
interim payments that were made in advance to home health agencies andjustijied at the 
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,end ofthe year; require home health appifcants 10 provide t/1eir Social Security number 
and employer ID number so that the agency can screen .out those who have committed 

. fraud in the past. HHS is also seeking to furiher reduce fraud qnd abuse in horrze health 
care, andother areas, by expanding the Operation Restore Trust pilot program to 12 
states. 

HHS has also just awarded more {han .$2. 25 million in grants for new programs 10 
aid in thejightagainstfraud and abuse. The, "Health Care Fraud and Abuse Control 
Grants ,J are funded by the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA), 
signed into law last August by President Clinton. More than $1.5 million will be 
administered by the Health Care Financing A.dministration which runs the Medicare and 
Medicaid programs, along with the Department ofJustice. The HHS Administration on 
Aging will adl'ninister the .other $750,000 which will be in the form ofgrants to state offices 
on aging. The grants will help expand the highly successful "Operation Restore Trust" 
mentioned above. . 

PROVIDER ENROLLMENT REGULATION 

This regulation, together with admiQistrative Ghanges, would tighten the scr~ening process for home 
health providers and make'it tougher for problem providers to enter the Medicare program. ' 
Requirements would include: " 

Administrative Changes· 

• 	 A requirement that home health ~gencies serve a minimum number of patients prior to 

certification. Exceptions will be considered so as not to adversely affect access to services in 

rural or urban settings. 


o 	 Data on related businesses owned by the home health agency must be shared with HCF A. This 
new rule will help prevent unscrupulous operators from running illegal transactions through 
subsidiaries or shadow companies that don't even exist. 

Implementing the Budget 

(II HCFA will publish an interim' final rule implementing a provision of the'1997 Balanced Budget 
Act to require home health agencies to obtain surety bonds of at least $50,000. This rule will be 
published to meet the statutory deadline of Jan. 1, 1998. 

• 	 Initial capitalization requirements wiHbe published mandating ho,me health agencies have 

sufficient cash to meet operating expenses for the first three to six months of operation. 


Notice ofProposed Rulemaking 

.• 	 A Federal Register notice will be published outlining HCF A's plan to require periodic re­
enrollment of home health agencies every three years, This would help HCFA to target 
providers who have abused the program or those with inappropriate business practices. A horne 
health agency ·will also be required to submit an independent audit of its records to HeFA at the 
time of re-enrollment. . 

Increased Administrative Efforts 

4) HCFA will increase spending in the Medicare IntegrityPmgrarn by $10 million to double the 
nwnber of audits performed from 900 to 1,800 in 1998. The agency will also increase the 

. number ofclaims reviewed to 50,000 a year-a 25 percent hike over 1996. 
• 	 HCFA will seek additional resources, through ,the 1998 supplemental, for audits and ~edical 
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review as ~ell as for implementation and enforcement of the new enrollment regulations. 

, , 

CONDITIONS OF PARTICIPATION 

Conditions of Participation are federal standai~s that home health agencies ~ust meet in orderto 

participate in the Medicare program. The rule proposed by the Clinton Administration to revise 

these standards would take several steps to protect beneficiaries and improve quality., These ' 

include: ' 


• 	 Requiring that home health agencies conduct criminal background checks of home health 

aides as a condition of employment; , 


• 	 Expanding the current home health aide qualifications to include nurse aides who have 

completed appropriate nurse aide training or competency evaluation requirements; : , 


• 	 ' Requiring home health agencies to provide their staffs with continuous feedback on 

qualifications and performance as part of their continuous improvement programs; ~, 


• 	 Requiring home health agenCies to discuss with patients the expected outcomes of care so 

that patients can be more involved in planning theirovm care; and 


• 	 Requiring home health agencies to coordinate all care prescribed by physicians for their 

patients. Now, several agencies can serve one patient without the coordination that is 

needed to assure quality . 


, THE OUTCOMES AND ASSESSMENT INFORNIATION SET (OASIS) 
. . 	 .' . \ . . . ' ~ . 

A second proposed regulation announced by HHS on March 5, 1997, would require home health ' 
agencies to use a standardized system called OASIS -- ihe Outcomes and Assessment Information \ 
Set -- to monitor patients' conditions and satisfaction. Under OASIS, home health care agencies 
must perform a standardized assessment of new patients within 48 hours to determine immediate 
'care and support needs. Home health care agencies are then required to update this initial 
assessment continuously untita patient is discharged IO relleet changes in the patient's condition 
and to measure patient and family satisfaction. Agencies must also evaluate the results of OASIS 
assessments and apply'this information to agency prac,tices as part of their continuous quality 
improvement programs. This standardized measurement system helps both inspectors and agencies 
to identifY opportunit~es to improve performance and patient satisfaction. 

FIGHTING FRAUD AND ABUSE 

As the fastest growing expenditure in the Medicare program, home health care has become a 
frequent target of fraud, and abuse. 'fn fact, the newly issued report by the Inspector General on home 
health agencies revealed that in four of the five states reviewed by the IG as part ofORT, 40 percent 
of Medicare payments for home health should not have been made. These improper payments 
resulted in losses of approximately $2.6 billion over a l5-month period. Stamping out this fraUd and 
abuse is a top Clinton administration priority, and the administration's Operation Restore Trust 
initiative has produced dramatic savings since its inception in 1995. One thing Operation Restore 

, Trust does is train state surveyors who review home health ,agencies to look fqr care being provided, ' 
that is not covered by the Medicare program. Operation Restore Trust has now been expanded to 12\ 

,states. In addition, several key administration proposals to, fight fraud have been included in the ' 
balanced budget bill, including: 

., 	 new penalti~s for kickbacks. Providers who pay kickbacks to induce referrals would be. subject 

to civil monetary penalties of $50,000 per violation.' , 


•. 	 authority to require health care providers applying to participate in Medicare and Medicaid to 
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. provide their Social Security numbers and their employer TO. numbers so that the agency can. 
'screen out those who committed fraud in the past. . 

• 	 authority to require surety bonds of $50,000 from home health agencies and other providers so 
that fly-by-night operations never get into the program. 

• 	 a clear definition of skilled services so that home heal (h agenCies can no longer pad their bills 
for unnecessary services when a patient simply needs blood drawn.' . 

• 	 authority to deny payment to agencies that bill for far more services than other agencies do in 
similar situations. The authority goes beyond just home health providers and can be applied to 
any Medicare provider. . . . 

CONTROLLING GROWTH THROUGH APPROPRIATE PAYMENTS 

The President's FY 1998 budget included several proposals to reduce the cost of Medicare home 
health benefits bX$14 billion over 5 years while reorganizing the way Medicare pays for home 
health services. Provisionspassecl by Congress and signed into law August 5, 1997 include: 

. , 	 . 

• 	 authority to establish a prospective payment system for home health services, to be implemented 
Oct. 1. 1999; Moving to a PPS system will be a tremendous tool to stemming the flow of home 
health care dollars. Instead of open-ended billing, HCFA will set, in advance, what it will pay 

. for a unitof service, how many visits will be included in that unit and what mix of services will 
be provided. Providing questionable services will no longer be profitable. • 

• 	 authority to bar felons from ever participating in IVledicare again. 
• 	 Separation. ofhome health services into two distinct benefits under Medicare Part A and 

Medicare Part B. . 
• 	 a clear definition oflimits on hours and days that home health care can be provided. 
o 	 elimination of periodic interim payments that were made in advance to agencies and not 

justified until the end of the year (part ofmoving i() a PPS system). ' 
• 	 billing by location of service rather thanlocation of the agency's headquarters. This will stop 

agencies from getting higher urban reimbursement when, in fact, the service occurred in a 
lower-cost rural setting. 

• 	 establishment ofguidelines for the frequency and duration of home health services. Payments 
would be denied for visits that exceed the established stanqard. . 

• 	 clarification of¢e definition of part-time or intermittent nursing care. 

### 



Proposals made to Senators ·Grassley & Breaux 

to be discussed at their 


Home Health Care Roundtable 

September 25, 1997 

DETECTION 

I. Program Controls ' 
A. Beneficiaries 
B. Providers 
C. HCFA: structural changes tobenefif 

II. Certification 
A. Providers 
B. States 

1. Initial certification surveys 

,.2. Recertification surveys 

3. ,Laws & regulations 

III. Accountability (Review process) , 
A. Beneficiaries 
B. Providers 
C. HCFA & Fiscal intermediaries 

PROSECUTION 

IV. Enforcement 

V. Appellate Process 
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PROPOSALS MADE TO SENATORS GRASSLEY & BREAUX TO BE DISCUSSED AT ROUNDTABLE 


DETECTION OF FRAUD, WASTE & ABUSE 

I. 	 Program Controls 

A.. 	 Beneficiaries 

• 	 Clarify the rules and regulations that govern eligibility for home care . 
services under both Medicare and Medicaid. 

• 	 Educate beneficiaries about eligibility requirements. 

• 	 Empower consumers to help identify and fight fraud through information 
dissemination and financial incentives. . ' 
-- financial rewards 
-- triple damages 
-- qui tam provisions 
-- 1...800 numberS ' 
-- web sites 

•. 	 Improve eligibility determinations and the approval 'of plans of care and 
services by providing additional guidance regarding the definition of 
homebound. 

• 	 Include adult day care centers in the definition of homebound. ' 

B. 	 Providers 

• 	 Create incentives to be efficient in the delivery of services. 
. . 	 . 

• 	 . Improve physician supervision by requiring all patients to be seen on a, 
regular basis. 
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PROPOSALS MADE TO SENATORS GRASSLEY &BREAUX TO BE DISCUSSED AT ROUNDTABLE 

• 	 Require more focused medical reviews with interviews to verify the need for 
services. 

c. 	 HCFA: Structural changes to benefit 

• 	 Establish a "gatekeeper" position to verify whether patients continue to 
need the. care that is being provided. 

(. 	 Introduce the use of a case management agency to eliminate the financial 
conflict of interest that currently allows the same home health agency to' 
both (I) determine the need for care and (2) provide t.hat care. 

• 	 Create an accreditation system for home health executives so that they· 
are fully aware of Medicare reimbursement policies.' . . 

• 	 Require social security numbers and employee identification numbers 
when applying to become Medicare providers. 

• 	 .' Establish a moratorium to stop the expansion of new home health care 
providers. . 

• 	 Develop outcome-based measurement systems. 

• 	 Initiate prior authorization of all further home health services after a 
certain cap is met on each patient. . 

• 	 Develop a cap for Medicare home health services; when a patient reaches 
the maximum allowed; the physician should be . required to conduct· a 
comprehensive assessment and medical review of the patient's condition 
and needs before any further home health services are authorized. 

• 	 Simplify regulations addressing reimbursable and allowable items under 
Medicare. 

• 	 Require detailed codes on each home health bill that identify the specific 
services . provided (similar. to the Physicians' Current Procedural 
terminology and the HCFA Common Procedure Coding System now used 
to identify many specific services billed to Medicare). 
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PROPOSAlS MADE TO SENATORS GRASSLEY &BREAUX TO BE DISCUSSED AT ROUNDTABLE 

• 	 DolDo not require userJees forsurvey and certification· activities .. 

• 	 Require the collection of data and information exchange related to both 
organizations and key persons of the orgaruzation. 

• 	 Further restructure the payment system to eliminate inappropriate 
incentives which unnecessarily increase cost and utilization. Additional 
options include: visit caps or liririts, cost limits per beneficiary, benefit 
targeting, limits on expenditures per beneficiary, and beneficiary 
copayments. 

• 	 :Reform the paymentsystem in away that will tie payment to both patient 
acuity and desired outcomes. 

• 	 Do not reduce existing cost limits. 

.• 	 Institute/Refrain from instituting anycostwsharlng by beneficiaries for home 
care services. 

• 	 Replace the cost-reimbursement system with a system of competitive 
bidding. 

• 	 Allow home care referral agencies access to the Medicare market for' 
long-term and post-acute. . 

II. 	 CERTIF1CATION 

A. 	 Providers 

• 	 Prevent unscrupulous providers from gaining entrY into·the program. 

• 	 Strengthen the initial Medicare certification process. 

• 	 Establish comprehensive guidelines for initial certification that have 
stringent standards on 
(1) character, . 
(2) competence, and 
(3) financial feasibility .. 
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PROPOSALS MADE TO SENATORS GRASSLEY &BREAUX TO BE DISCUSSED AT ROUNDTABLE 


(1)' 	 Character 

• 	 Institute criminal.background checks for alll\'Iedicare . provider 
owners and administrators and prohibit entry of knoWn felons into 
the Medicare program. . . 

(2) 	 Competence 

• 	 Require that· providers have knowledge of reimbursement 
requirements before they become 'providers and require, that· 
providers continue· to be aware of. such requirements in order to 
. continue to. participate in the Medicare program .. 

• 	 .. Require prior health care experience. 

• 	 Require that :providers demonstrate proficiency by performing at a 
specified level before certification: ' 

• 	 Establish stricter standdrds regarding management behavior· 

(3) 	 Financialfeasibilify 

• 	 Establish capitalization requirements, ens\lring that providers are 
. financially sound prior to certification. 

• 	 Establish stricter Sitandards regarding fina.ncial behaVior. 

• 	 Institute an application fee which would pay for costs of sun:eys. 

B. 	 States 

(1) 	 .Initial certification 

• 	 LQok at a history of operational performance wh~n $urveying for 
certification, i.e., later initial surveys. . 
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PROPOSALS MADE TO SENATORS GRASSLEY Be BREAUX to BE DISCUSSED AT ROUNDTABLE 

• 	 Institute surveys that go beyond paper and include visits to patients 
receiving care. 

• . Train surveyors regarding reimbursement and coverage issues. 

• 	 Utilize a 'machine readable; sworn q1.1estionnaire to collect data 
used in' evaluating applicant organizations and require 
states/localities to use this collected data in their evaluation . 

. process. 

(2). 	Recertification .surveys 

. • . Strengthen the . recertification , process & eliminate present 
weaknesses by requiring periodic demonstrations of compliance 
wI all of Medicare's conditions of participation. . 	 - ..' ." 

• 	 Review all of a·home health agency's cranchoffice operations 
when conducting, surveys. 

• 	 Institute. earlier and more frequent surveys for home health 
'agencies experiencing rapid growth in order to detect potential 
problems. . 

• 	 Revisit home health agencies to verify implementation of corrective 
action plans. 

• 	 Require that stOte surveyors include compliance-like. studies in their 
certification review process. 

(3) 	 Laws & regulations 

• 	 Encourage uniformity' among licensure laws and implementing . 
regulations through the creation of model laws and ~egulations 
which the states can review for guidance. 
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PROPOSALS MADE TO SENATORS GRASSLEY 8£ BREAUX TO BE DISCUSSED AT ROUNDTABLE 

III. 	 ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. 	 Beneficiaries 

• 	 Require beneficiaries to sign a document certifying that home 
health care services have been provided. 

B. 	 Providers 

• 	 Require that all senior managers of home health care providers (Le., 
CEO, CFO, and COO) certify the accuracy of cost reports prior to 
their submission to Medicare in order to ensure greater internal 

, accountability. 

• 	 Enhance consumer protections for home health care recipients by 
strengthening federal requirements for worker screening and by 
creating quality' assurance standards regarding training, 
supervision, and the practice of delivering in-home services. 

• 	 Require/Do not ,require abusive providers to pay for follow-up audit 
work. 

C. 	 HCFA & Fiscal intermediaries 

• 	 Refine methods and increase funding for fiscal intennediary review 
of billing to identify aberrant patterns early for education or 
intervention. 

• 	 . Commit greater resources to enable review of a larger precentage . 
of claims in a timely fashion. 

• 	 Educate auditors regarding Medicare reimbursement and areas of 
concern in order to identify improper reimbursement practices. 

• 	 Encourage continuity and consistency in assigning auditors to 
home health agencies to create an institutional knowledge 
regarding particular providers. 
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PROPOSALS MADE TO SENATORS GRASSLEY & BREAUX TO BE DISCUSSED AT ROUNDTABL~ 

• 	 Require more interviews with direct in-house managers and institute 
concurrent reviews (Le., more in-home random spot checks and . 
hands-on audits). 

• 	 . Look at the overall structure of a business, includiIig. related, 
outside for-profit companies. Do not restrict auditing to the home 
health agency alone. 

• 	 Institute an iritegrity review to 'be conducted in conjunl:tion with 
financial stat~ment audits.. 

, ' .. 

• 	 Encourage iricrea~ed communication sharing between state survey 
agencies andregioncl home hecdth intermediaries (cooperation). 

• 	 Coordinate government reviews of home health agencies to reduce 
the present paperwork burden by instituting an information-sharing. 
system. 

• 	 Encourage stronger local/state accountability and stronger local 
clinical management to ensure that a high quality of care is 
provided to patients. 

- '. . . 
• 	 Require a public notice of survey results or billing information of 

each provider. 

• 	 . Discontinue the 'practice of issuing an explanation of Medicare 
benefits. If continued, it should be accompanied by an aggressive 
educational process to encourage beneficiaries and their families 
,to take a more active role in policing· the health care provided to 
them. . 
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PROPOSALS MADE TO SENATORS GRASSLEY & BREAUX TO BE DISCUSSED AT ROUNDTABLE 

PROSECUTION OF FRAUD, WASTE &: ABUSE 

IV. 	 Enforcement 

• 	 Create a strike force to attack recognized fraudulent providers. 

• 	 Institute a permanent exclusion penalty for home health agencies that are 
repeatedly cited for serious defiCiencies. 

• 	 Clarify standards for the imposition of intermediate sanctions. 

• 	 Provide additional administrative funding to Medicare contractors to 
effectively combat fraud and abuse and carry out basic claims processing. 

• 	 Institute mechanisms to terminate Medicare payment prior to ! 

prosecution or other resolution of a health care fraud case. 

• 	 Establish automatic liens to preclude providers from disposing of property 
or assets when under investigation and fleeing the state. 

• 	 Disallow any gain/benefit from the sale of a home health agency if a 
provider has been excluded from the Medicare program or convicted of 
fraudulent activity. 

• 	 Encourage states to establish civil qui tam provisiOns arid empower private 
citizens to bring qui tam actions for illegal remuneration, false claims, 
misrepresentations or illegal acts on behalf of medical assistance 
programs. 

• 	 Preclude the discharge of Medicare debts through bankruptcy. 

V. 	 Appellate process 

• 	 Exclude providers from representing the beneficiary in any appeal action. 
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PROPOSAL~ MADE TO SENATORS GRASSLEY &: BREAUX TO BE DISCUSSED AT ROUNDTABLE 

• 	 Mandate that Administrative Law Judges (ALJs) are bound by HCFA.. 
manual guidelines and by model, regional, and local medical review· 
policies. 

• 	 Reform the appeals process for claiin denial and survey/Certification 
deficiencies. 

• 	 Implement an fuformal cost report reimbursemerit appeal procedure . 

. • 	 Protect responsible providers and the patients they serve with due process 
for providers including 'equitable intermediate sanctions and a functional 
appeal process prior to decertification from the Medicare program. 
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Statement of Senator Chuck Grassley 
regarding Home Health Care Roundtable 

9-25-97 

We just finished a Hroundtable" discussion focusing on how to combat waste, fraud, and 
abuse within the home health care area. We reviewed a list of,proposals brought to us by various 
people interested in cleaning up home health care. 

The list is truly a Hlaundry list" of everything including the kitchen sink. The meeting 
covered a lot ofground and was very productive. My staff and I got a comprehensive view ofthe 
proposals. 

I want to make a couple of things clear right from the start. First and foremost, Senator 
Breaux and I are working together on this issue because we are both very strong supporters of home 
health. Home health care can help people live fulfilling lives at home, not in an institution. Further, 
it can be cost-effective for the Medicare program. 

The bad providers in the system are causing skyrocketing costs that threaten the entire 
benefit. So let's be clear that what Sen; Breaux and I are doing is protecting and preserving the 
valuable home care benefit. Our ultimate goal is producing legislation that is designed to protect and 
encourage the qualit}!: provider while eliminating the pmhlem provider. 

The second point I want to make is about the nature oftoday's meeting. Today's gathering 
was not about reaching consensus among the participants. Instead, today's meeting was designed 
to solicit opinions from a broad range ofexperts on the numerous proposals that have been brought 
to our attention. 

Finally, I want to make my last point very clear. No fmal decisions have been made 
concerning the legislation. The meeting today has been an irnrn:;;sely"helpful steptoward producing 

I 

legislation. The first step was our groundbreaking hearing in July. Now we've sought additional 
expert advice. . 

Sen. Breaux and I will review what we've learned today and, the written opinions submitted 
from anyone who is interested, and we'll decide how to proceed. Until we and our staffs have a 
chance to review all of the materials, it is simply too early to say what the final product will look 
like. 

The approach Sen. Breaux and I have taken to this important and complex issues is not a 
Hquick fix." We want a comprehensive solution that will preserve the home health benefit. We put 
together, in my opinion, an outstanding group of home health care experts. Their insight and 
willingness to share candid thoughts with us will, I hope, result in a quality piece of legislation. 

www.senate.gov/grassley
mailto:press@grassley.senate.gov
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***PRESS AVAILABILITY*** 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE Contact: Monte Shaw 
Monday, September 15, 1997 202-224-5364 

GrassIer, BreauxAnnounce Press Availahilit~ollowjng 


Home Health Care Fraud Roundtable 

Experts Called Together to Craft Comprehensive Fraud Fighting Legislation 


Washington, DC-- Senators Chuck Grassley and John Breaux today announced they would 
hold a press availability following a roundtable discussion focused on combating home health care 
fraud. The availability will take place on Thursday, September 25, at 3:10 PM, in Room 708 of the 
Hart Senate Office Building. 

Grassley and Breaux organized the roundtable following a hearing focusing on waste, fraud, 
=---' ­

and abuse within the home health care industry. The hearing revealed systemic abuse of the 
Mea1care home health beneflt by a small num ~er ofproblem providers. Grassley arid Breaux will 
use the roundtable to craft a piece ofcomprehensive legislation to attack all aspects of fraud, waste, 
and abuse based on ideas brought forward at the hearing and the rountabk Following the 
discussion, all members of the roundtable will be invited to share their thoughts with the press, 

Those attending t ~clude: George Grob, HHS Office of Inspector General; 
Leslie Aronovitz and illiam Scanlon?General Accounting Office; John Molesworth, Federal 
Bureau of Investigation; Linda RuiZ, Health Car ' cing Administration Program Integrity 
Group" slyn Mazer, Department of Justic MaryE' ellmark, Inc. (fiscal intermediary);, 

o by Jinda ,. Louisiana Department ofHealth an ospitals; Michael Costell rans Affairs 
Ice of Inspector General; George Fields, Internal Revenue Service; / "am Dom }N'ational 

Association for Home Care. 

WHAT:' Press Availability on Home Health Care Fraud Roundtable 
DATE: Thursday, September 25, 1997 
TIME: \ 3:10PM 
LOCATION: Hart Senate Office Building, Room 708 
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